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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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603-271*9200 1-800-852*3345 Ext 9200

Fax: 603-27M912 TDD A<c«»: 1-800-735-2964 www^hhx.Bh.gov

\b

May 17. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend an existing contract v^h the Contractor listed below in bold to provide social services
support to refugees who are recent arrivals and who have been in the country for five (5) years
or less, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the total price limitation by $^,000
from $685,386 to $750,386 and by extending the. completion date from September 30, 2022 to
September 30, 2023, effective October 1, 2022, upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on December 18, 2020,
item #8.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Ascentria

Community
Services.

Inc.

222201-

B001 Concord Area $555,386 $0 $555,386

0:12/18/20

20 #8

A1:

4/20/2022

#11

Building
Community

in New

Hampshire

228820-

B001

Concord,
Manchester,
and Nashua

Areas

$130,000 $65,000 $195,000
0:12/18/20

20 #8

Total: $685,386 $65,000 $750,386

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

TTie Deportment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communiti^ and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Couridl
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide social services,
that lead to seff-sufDctency, to refugees who have lived in the United States for less than Ttve (5)
years. The Contractor provides case management, employment services. English for Speakers
of Other Languages support, and housing assistance to support financial self-sufficiency and to
assist refugees with integration into society.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will l>e served through Septemt>er 2023.

The Contractor completes family self-sufficiency plans with each family in order to identify
goals the family wants to accomplish. Plans include a follow-up at month six (6) and twelve (12)
to review goals and to provide services, as necessary and appropriate, to meet those goals. In
order to ensure successful employment, the Contractor provides case management services
which includes medical referrals, day care, and cultural education.

The Department monitors the Contractor's performance through review of semi-annual
progress reports completed with each family served. Additionally, the Department reviews and
employability plans, case notes, and progress reports.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew senrices for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, newly arrived
refugees may not receive the employment and case management services necessary to assist
them in achieving financial self-sufficiency. Without training and guidance, refugees may not be
able to successfully enter the work force and become integrated into society.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numt)er #93.566, FAIN #; 2001NHRSOC.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

( A Lori A. Shibinette
y ij—Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05.95.95.950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HHS: COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER; REFUGEE SERVICES

Building Community In New Hampshire 228820

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $48,750 $0 $48,750

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $65,000 $0 $65,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $16,250 $48,750 $65,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $0 $16,250 $16,250

Sub Total $130,000 $65,000 $195,000

05-95-95-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER; REFUGEE SERVICES

Ascentrla 222201-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $97,500 $0 $97,500

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $148,750 $0 $148,750

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $57,500 $0 $57,500

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070006 $6,250 $0 $6,250

Sub Total $310,000 $0 $310,000

05-95-95-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

Ascentrla 222201-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070022 $84,390 $0 $84,390

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070022 $131,253 $0 $131,253

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070022 $29,743 $0 $29,743

Sub Total $245,386 $0 $245,386

Overall Total! $685,386.00! $65.000! $750,386!

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1



DocuSign Envelope ID; A098196A-C250-4D74-8D66-6142062AEA33

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Social Services Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Building Community in New Hampshire ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18, 2020, (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$195,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment
of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified in Exhibit
C-1, Budget, through Exhibit C-5, Budget, Amendment #1.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the Department no later
than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Ensure the invoice is presented in a form that is provided by the Department or is otherwise
acceptable to the Department.

4.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.3. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include, but is not limited
to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as
applicable.

4.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate payment.

5. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Building Community in New Hampshire A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
5/16/2022

RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date



DocuSign Envelope 10: A098196A-C25CMO74-8D66-6142062AEA33

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2022, upon Governor and Council approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/18/2022

Date

-OocuStgntd by;

(V, loMjni
■ 3i1Bi^B'a7CPBCB4g»

Name" Landry
Title: Associate commissioner

S/16/2022

Date

Building Community in New Hampshire
^OoeuSign«d by;

Title: 5/16/2022

Building Community in New Hampshire

RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■DocuSi9n«d by:f  iMcubi^nM by:

5/24/2022 '^ViLjvu
Diii Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Building Community in New Hampshire A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 3 of 3
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-4 Amendment #1 RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: BuBding Community in New Hampshire (BONN)

Budget Request for: New Hampshire Refugee Social Services Program

Budget Period SPY 2023

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.80%

Line item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages
$23,478

2. Fringe Benefits $2,735

3. Consultants
$0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0

and Appenda IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical so

5.{e) Supplies Office $192

6. Travei
$750

7. Software
SO

8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please spec^) SO

Other (please specify) .  $0

Other (pfease specify) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts SI 5.675

Total Direct Costs $42,830

Total Indirect Costs $5,920

TOTAL $48,750

Page 1 of 1
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-5 Budget Amendment #1 RFP.2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; Building Community in New Hampshte (BCNH)

Budget Request for: New Hampshire Refugee Social Services Program

Budget Period 7/1/23-9/30/23

Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable) 21.80%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by.DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $7,826

2. Fringe Benefits $912

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rete cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200. l
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $64

6. Travel $250

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $5,225

Total Direct Costs $14,277

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

$1.973

$16,250

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BUILDING COMMUNITY IN

NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 14,

2011. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 660551

Certificate Number: 0005766568

SI

O

%

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 26lh day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretarj' of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Douglas E. Hall, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of Building Community in New Hampshire.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 10,2022 at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

(Date) May 10. 2022

-VOTED: That Richard A. MInard, Jr.. Executive Director, is duly authorized on behalf of Building Community in New
Hampshire to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
-departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation, To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_May 10, 2022
Signaturaof Elected Officer

Name:

Title:CUr Boctvcl DtVEctTrS.

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
date(mm;ocvyyyy)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCEfi

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Faifley Kennealty
(eos) 293-2791 f*' (603)293-7188

aivMlFss- fair1ey@esinsurance.net
INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAtCt

INSURER A: Sentinel Insurance Co LTD 11000

INSURED

Building Community in New Hampshire

1045 Elm Street Suite 202

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER B • Insuance Co 29459

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL20111014285 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

Tnsr
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

X

Mjwjwijjy
iRRSIRnn POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCWL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLWMS-MAOE X OCCUR

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOUCY

OTHER:

04SBAAESg5d

POUCYEFF
iMM/oofrrm

05/15/2022

POUCY EXP
IMMCD/YYYYI

05/15/2023

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

BAMASETO RENTES
PREMISES IE> occurrence)

MEO EXP (Any OfW prton)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

2,000.000

1,000.000

10.000

2,000.000

4.000.000

4.000.000

AUTOMOBIU UABILITY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accidenH

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

OVkNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OVWED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par accklartf)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acdrlani)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAJMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Maridatory In NH)
II yat. dascriba un^
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Mow

STATUTE
OTH
ER

04WECCR0500 07/30/2021 07/30/2022
e.L EACH ACCIDENT

100,000

e.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
100,000

e.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Rtmarfci Sehadula, may ba attaehad If mora spaca is raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement: Building Community in New Hampshire

BCNH is a multi-ethnic Mutual Assistance Association that provides an array of
services required by diverse refugee and immigrant communities that help
newcomers to understand and navigate the systems that are part of everyday life.
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Leone, ,
McDonnell

January 3, 2020 & Roberts
Pkiw^siiiNu \<si*;ivfi<i\

TO the Board o( Directors ^BLICACCOUtfTAtm
WLFEBORO • NORTH CONVKtf

Building Conr^munity in New Hampshire DON'ER • CONCORD
,  . ., ,, . . STRATHA-M

Manchester, New Hampshire

have audited the financial statements of Building Community In New Hampshire for the year ended December
31, 2016, and we wi!l issue our report thereon dated January 3. 2020. Professional standards require that we
provide you with Information at>out our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and Uming of our audit. We have communicated such information
In our tetter to you dated October 1, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management Is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Building Community in New Hampshire are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. As described in Note 1. the Organization changed accounting policies related to the presentation of
its net assets and the general presentation of the Organization's financial statements by adopting FASB
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities,
for fiscal year end December 31.2018. We noted no transactions entered Into by the Organization during the year
for which there Is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized
in the financial statements In the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possitxiity that future events affecting them may differ significantly from foose expected. The
most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the deferred revenue is based on evaluation of actual expenses incurred under grants
during the year under audit, vs the revenue actually drawn down. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the deferred revenue in determining that it is reasonable In relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particulariy sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disc{osure(8) affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of Liquidity and Availability in Note 5 to the financial staten^ents because It gives the reader a
sense of cash that will be available for the upcoming obligations.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.

DIfficullies Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management In performing and completing our audit

Corrected and Uncorrected MIsstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all rrtisstatements Identified during the audit, other than those
that are dearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management There were no
misstatements identified.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this tetter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit

5 NblSON STREET • DOVER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03820 • 603 749-2700 • FAX 603 749-4856 • ttwlmfpicom
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Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated January 3, 2020.

Management Consultations with Other Irtdependent Accountants

in some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a "second opinion' on certain situations, tf a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the Organization's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant ̂ cts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters. Including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors of Building Community in New Hampshire
and Is not intended to be. and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours.

January 3, 2020
Dover, New Hampshire
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Financial Statements

BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018
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Leone, ^
McDonnell
& Roberts

HktfKSSONAL Assoaximv

CERTIFIED IHJBUC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONVAY
DOVER • CONCORD

To the Board of Directors of stratham

Building Community In New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statennents of Building Community in. New
Hampshire (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of activities,
cash flows and functional expense for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
In the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entit/s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion
In our opinion, the ftnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Buildirtg Community in New Hampshire as of
December 31, 2018, and the changes in Its net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

January 3, 2020
Dover, New Hampshire
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BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31. 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable

5,216
19.095

Total current assets 24,311

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Short-term loan

Deferred revenue

6,702

5.000
31,691

Total liabilities 43,393

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions (19,082)

Total liabilities and net assets 24.311

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

i-STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

UNRESTRICTED REVENUE, SUPPORT AND NET

ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Contributions

Federal grants
State grants
Private grants
Fees

Total revenue, supporj and net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Services for Seniors

Social Services

Nutrition Services

Health Insurance Navigator
Ethnic Self-Help Services
New Hampshire Charitatjle
Other

Total program services

Supporting Activities:

Management and Genej-al
Fundraising

Total expenses

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEA!

See Notes to Financial Statements

4

$ 11,476

180,252

93,233

91,678

4.188

380,827

27,580

8,100

48.405

56,831

98,814

8,252

54,230

302,212

65,837

691

368,740

12,087

(31,169)

$ (19,082)
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BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

HATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT NG ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile chahges in net assets to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease (increase) i v assets:

Account receivabi j

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabllr ies:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and rela ed taxes
Short term loan

Deferred revenue

NET CASH USED IN OPERAT NG ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net payments on long term debt

LNET CASH USED IN FtNANC

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

G ACTIVITIES

See Notes to Financial Statements
I

5  I

$ 12,087

(16,740)
1,410

1,702

(8,366)
5,000

(22,410)

(27.317)

(59.318)

(59.318)

(86,635)

91,851

$ 5,216
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BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Building Community in New Hampshire (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization. The Organization was organized to assist refugees and
immigrates transitioning to living in the United States of America.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

New Accountino Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board
of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by
the donor has stipulated the funds by maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are redassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor

restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions at December 31.
2018.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financiai statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management
believes that these estimates and assumptions provide a reasonable basis for
their presentation in the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers cash and all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity date of less than three months to be cash and cash equivalents for
purposes of the statements of cash flows. There were no cash equivalents for the
years ended December 31, 2018.

Deferred Revenue

The deferred revenue accounts consist of grants that have not been expended as
of December 31,2018.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the year ended December 31,
2018, there were no advertising costs

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that are
financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under code section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounting for Income
Taxes," established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The
Organization has analyzed its tax position taken on its exempt purpose information
returns for the years 2015 through 2018 and has concluded that no provision for
income taxes is necessary In the Organization's financial statements.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providlrig the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the program senrices and supporting
activities benefited. Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct
expenses incurred or estimated usage based on time spent on each program by
the staff.

8
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Expense

Wages, payroll taxes and
benefits

Depreciation
All other expenses

Method of allocation

Time and effort

Actual assets used by program
Direct assignment

NOTE 2. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Organization does not accrue compensated absences because the amount
cannot t>e reasonably estimated.

NOTE 3. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating Lease Commitment

The Organization entered into a lease agreement on April 25. 2019. The lease
term runs from May 2019 through April 2020. Payments are $500 for the months
of May and June, 2019. Thereafter, the payments will be $1,000 per month.

Future minimum lease payments as of December 31,2018 are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31

2019

2020

Total

Amount

$ 7,000

4.000

Actual rent payments made during the year ended December 31. 2018 were
$21,200.

NOTE 4. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances at two financial institutions. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for
each financial institution up to $250,000 on all accounts as of December 31, 2018.
There were no deposits in excess of the insured limits at December 31, 2018.

NOTES. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at Decemk>er 31,
2018:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recelval}le

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

$ 5,216
19.095

I  24.311
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The Organization's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses, which is approximately $30,000 at December 31, 2018

NOTE 6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before the financial statements are available to be
issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial
position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the
financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position
date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events
through January 3, 2020, the date the financial statements were available for
issuance.

NOTE 7. SHORT TERM LOAN

The Board Chair loaned the Organization $5,000 during the year ended December
31, 2018. There are no specific terms and no stated interest due. However, it is
reasonable to t>elieve that the Organization will repay the loan as soon as
possible.

10
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Building Community in New Hampshire
Formerly Bhutanese Community of New Hampshire
1045 Elm Street, Suite 202, Manchester, NH 03101

5 Pine Street Extension, Unit 2Y, Nashua, NH 03060
www.bcinnh.orq bcnh@bcinnh.orq 603-935-9620

BCNH
CewtiNty m HormNrt

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Douglas Hall, Chair
Over a long career Doug created and led many non-profit organizations in New Hampshire and Nepal.
He has served as Executive Director or as a member of the Board of Directors of NH Center for Public

Policy Studies, NH Developmental Disabilities Council, NH Social Welfare Council, Cyan Jyoti
Kendra, NH Children's Alliance, SOS Local Government, Online New Hampshire, NH Family Planning
Association, New ERA/Nepal, and NH School Funding Fairness Project. He was elected to the NH
House of Representatives for 4 terms and to the position of Town Moderator for 17 years in his
hometown of Chichester. As Bhutanese refugees began to arrive in the US in 2008, he published and
then distributed over 8,500 copies of a Nepali-English English-Nepali dictionary for their benefit. He is
also co-author of the 200-page bilingual Handbook for Living in Ihe United States.

Samba Halkose, Vice Chair
Samba came to the United States as an immigrant from the Democratic Republic of Congo by way of
Nairobi. She is an adult education counselor at the Adult Learning Center in Nashua and an active
organizer within the Congolese community. Samba earned a Bachelor of Science degree in business
with a specialization in human resources. She has worked with New Hampshire's refugees as a medical
interpreter, employment specialist, and resettlement case manager. She lives in Manchester.

Bhola Subedi, Treasurer
Bhola is a former refugee from Bhutan. He is the Administrator at CarePoint Plus, a home care services .
agency that provides culturally and linguistically appropriate in-home care services. He has ser\'ed as a
program director at Crotched Mountain Foundation in Greenfield, NH, and as a financial analyst at TD
Bank. While still a refugee in Nepal in 2002, Bhola helped establish the Institute for Gender and Legal
Equality. He earned an MBA from Springfield College in Massachusetts in 2013. He lives in
Manchester and serves on the Mayor's Multicultural Advisory Council.

Tika Acharya

Tika is a former refugee from Bhutan. He was BCNH's founding Executive Director and led the
organization from 2009 until 2018. He is the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees
Congress Member from the State of New Hampshire. Tika is currently a Principal of AS Insurance
LLC, an insurance brokerage agency, and oversees 5 branch locations from its home office in
Manchester where he lives. Mr. Acharya has previously held positions in government contract
management, insurance, and finance. He holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from India
and Certificates in executive management program from Paul College of Business Management and
Economics at University of New Hampshire.

Ishwori Bhatta

Ishwori is an immigrant from Nepal who moved to Nashua, NH, in 2003 with his wife and two
children. They moved to Concord in 2009. Ishwori is a social worker with NAFI/NFI and also the
founder and chief editor of the International Nepali Literary Society of New Hampshire. He has
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volunteered for many organizations and in 2020 was the first recipient of Volunteering New
Hampshire's People's Choice Award.

Blaise Nganyi Imbembe
Blaise Nganyi Imbembe was bom in Congo and moved to Belgium in 2003 to study. He earned an MS
in military engineering at the Royal Military Academy of Brussels. He earned a BS in civil engineering
in Montreal in 2014, and an MS in structural engineering at UNH in 2018. Blaise lives in Manchester
with his wife and two children. He works for an engineering firm in Bedford. Blaise was president of
the Congolese Community of New Hampshire from 2018 through 2020. He was elected to the BCNH
Board in October 2021.

TilakNiroula

Tilak is a former refugee from Bhutan. He served as Communication Manager for BCNH from 2013 to
2018. He has an extensive background in mass communications and public relations and has earned a
degree in Business Administration from Southern New Hampshire University. He is a regional
operations director at Relevant Inc., in Pennsylvania. Tilak has published dozens of op-eds on refugees
and immigrants in various publications. He was honored with the "Premiere Production Award 2013-
2014' by Concord TV and was selected as a member of the New Hampshire Union Leader's "40 under
40" class of 2017. Previously, Tilak served on the Board of Directors of the Bhutan Media Society. He
was elected board chair in December 2019 and served through December 2020.

Rudra Timsina, Chair
Rudra is a former refugee from Bhutan. Rudra has been associated with Building Community in New
Hampshire in various capacities since the founding of the organization. He has volunteered in various
programs of BCNH and worked as a Secretary/Board Secretaiy before he joined the Board of Directors
in 2017. Rudra has a Master of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of New
Hampshire (UNH). He works for Raytheon Technologies on missile and defense systems. He recently
got appointed as an affiliate assistant professor at the Electrical and Computer Engineering department
at UNH where he conducts research on 5G technologies. He lives in Concord.

Updated: April 14 2022

BCNH Is a multi-ethnic Mutual Assistance Association that provides an array of services required by diverse refugee and
immigrant communities that help newcomers to understand and navigate the systems that are part of everyday life.
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RICHARD A MINARD JR.

EXPERIENCE

2018-PRESENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

2017-2021

ENERGY SPECIALIST, SOL-SMART ADVISOR, NORTHERN MIDDLESEX COUNCIL OF

Governments and The Solar Foundation

2015-2017

DEPUTY DIRECTOR, NH Office of Energy and Planning

2009-2014

VICE PRESIDENT FOR POLICY, NH COMMUNITY LOAN Fund

2006-2008

PRESIDENT AND CEO, NH AUDUBON

2005-2006

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HARVARD UNIVERSITY CENTER FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

2000-2005

CO-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NH CENTER FOR PUBLIC POLICY STUDIES

1994-2000

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, CENTER FOR THE Economy & THE Environment, National Academy of

Public Administration

1991-1994

FOUNDING DIRECTOR, NORTHEAST CENTER FOR COMPARATIVE RISK, VERMONT LAW SCHOOL

1989-1991

COMPARATIVE RISK PROJECT MANAGER, Vermont Agency of Natural Resources

1986-1989

DIRECTOR, Vermont Governor's Office of Policy Research and Coordination
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1980-1986

EDITORIAL PAGE EDITOR, VALLEY News

1980

ASSISTANT PRESS SECRETARY, U.S. SENATOR JOHN DURKIN

1978-1980

REPORTER, The Keene Sentinel

EDUCATION

Harvard Kennedy School of Government, Cambridge, MA, 1993-1994
Master of Public Administration, emphasis on environmental management and economics

Named a Littauer Fellow in recognition of academic achievement and public service

Executive Program, Climate Change.and Energy Policy for the Long Term, 2016

Senior State and Local Executives Program, 1986

University College, Cardiff, Wales, 1977-1978
Rotary International Fellow at the Centre for Journalism Studies

Harvard College, Cambridge, MA, 1973-1977
Bachelor of Arts, magna cum laude, in English and American Literature and Language

Center for Whole Communities, Fayston, VT, June 2009

New Hampshire Climate and Energy Leadership Program

Leadership New Hampshire, Manchester, NH, 2002
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Hussain Amiri

CASE MANAGER:

BUILDING COMMUNITY IN NEW HAMPSHIRE

December 2021'present

Serving Afghan evacuees throughout New Hampshire

PRIOR EXPERIENCE

June, 15,2016-Aug,22,2016

Custodian, Concord High School

June,15,2017-Aug,15,2017

Kitchen • Camp Fatima

feb.2018-Sep-2019

Cashier, Walmart Super Center

Helped and maintained the value and belief of the Walmart while being employed.

Sep,2020-Dec 2021

Watts Water Technology Inc.

EDUCATION

Plymouth State University, enrolled in Computer Science program, minor in business
Concord High School

SKILLS

Dari, Farsi, Hindi, Urdu, and English, and some Arabic and Pashto

LEADERSHIP

•  JV Captain in Football team

•  Volunteer for Elizabeth Warren Campaign.
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in.

PROFILE

Eric Irakiza came to the United States

in 2014 as a refugee from Democratic

Republic of Congo. He lives in

Manchester, NH, with his wife and

two young sons, and is dedicated to

helping other new Americans

succeed in New Hampshire.

Languages:

English

French

Swahili

Kinyarwanda

Kirundi

Contact

MAIL:

PHONE:

ERIC IRAKIZA
C3seMai)3gerKo(MiiiityKealtiiWoder
EDUCATION

New Hampshire Technical Institute
Course work in Criminal Justice 2016-present

Kigali City, Rwanda
High School diploma in social science, 2010

ULK Kigali, Rwanda

Associate Degree in computer science, 2014

WORK EXPERIENCE

Building Community in New Hampshire: Case manager & community
health worker

January 2020 - present
•  Helps new Americans with limited or no English find emplovment, connect

with public systems, and navigate life in Manchester
•  Connects new Americans with health and mental health services at the

Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Brackets Consultant Tax Preparation: Tax Preparer
2017-pre$ent

EMAIL:

FW Webb, Maplehurst Bakery, Velcro, Rustic Crust; warehouse and
other entry-level work

2013-2017

Working for several employment agencies, held a series of jobs open to
new Americans, including operating forklifts, tracking materials, and
inspecting products for quality.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary (annual) % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Richard Minard Executive Director $80,080 5% $4,004 (annual)

Erik Irakiza Case Manager $43,680 33% $14,196

Hussain Amiria Case Manager $43,680 30% $13,104

$31,304
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 0330I-M57
603-271.9200 l«)a«52.^ Eit 9200

Fn: 603-271.4912 TDD Accm: l-800.tj5-2964 www^6h».oh.|ov

November 23, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Hurhan Services. Office of the Commissioner, to
enter into Retroactive contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$390,000 to provide refugee social services that focus on refugees who are recent arrivals and
who have been in the country for five (5) years or less; with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective retroactive to October 1. 2020. upon Governor and Council approval
through September 30. 2022.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Narhe Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Ascentria Community
Services. Inc. Worcester,
MA

222201-8001
Concord Area $260,000

Building Community in
New Hampshire

228820-B001
Concord.

Manchester, and

Nashua Areas

$130,000

Total; $390,000

Funds are available In the. following account for State Fiscal Years 2021 and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-042-42200010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: HUMAN SERVICES. MINORITY HEALTH, REFUGEE SERVICES

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

Class Title

\

Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200013 $146,250

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200013 $195,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200013 $48,750

Total $390,000



His Exc6llency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because mpre time was needed to negotiate and finalize the
scope of the work prior to the vendors accepting the terms of the agreement.

The purpose of this request is to provide social services that lead to self-sufficiency for
refugees who are newly arriving In the country and for refugees who have lived in the United
States for less than five (5) years.

Approximately 300-400 individuals will be served annually.

The contractors will provide employment services that remove barriers and promote self-
sufficiency and well-being for refugees. Case management senrices that assist refugees in their
efforts to thrive in the mainstream culture will be provided to ensure and support individual artd
family success. English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) classes services that rapidly
prepare refugees for entry into the job market and facilitate their Integration to American culture
.will also be made available through contracted services. Additionally, the contractors will conduct
American workplace orientations for participating refugees, which include conducting employment
assessments for each employable member of refugee households through vendor-developed
assessment tools. The contractors will develop employability plans based on assessment results.
Additionally, the Contractor will assist refugees with accessing mainstream services such as WIC.
Fuel Assistance and Head Start to facilitate family success and self-sufficiency.

The Department will monitor contracted services through the following perfofmar»ce
measures, tools, and deliverables:

•  Ensuring all employers seeking best practices related to vyorking with refugees receive
necessary resources.

• All parllcipating adults receive an estimated thirty (30) hours cultural orientation.
•  Ensuring 90% client served annually, will have a decrease In employment barriers
•  Ensuring a minimum of 65% of clients are placed in jobs annually.
•  Ensuring all clients receiving employment support services receive follow-up services

regardless of employment status.

'  The Department selected the contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 6/9/2020 through
6/6/2020. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored by a team
of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1.2, of the
attached contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties, and Governor and Coundi approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, newly arrived refugees may
not receive the employment and case management services necessary to assist them in
achieving financial selfrsufficiency. Additionally, refugees may not have access to the culturally
and linguistically appropriate intensive services that give them a good start in the United States.
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Areas served: Concord. Manchester and Nashua areas

Sourceof Funds: CFDA #93.566. FAIN #2001NHRSOC

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

77k Department ofHeoUh ondllumon Servicet'MUeion it to Join eommunitiei and fomiUa
in prouiding opporiuniliet for oilittnt to achieve health and independence'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Refugee Social Services RFP-2021-OHE-01^EFUG

RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.

2.

3.

Ascentria Community Services Inc.

Building Community in New Hampshire

4.

5.

6.

7.

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Trinidad Tellez

PassFail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

320 303

320 234

320 0

320 0

320 0

320 0

320 0

2.

3.

Barbara Seebart

Shawn Barry

Robert Oaigte

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Laura McGlashan



05-95-42-42200010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. MINORITY HEALTH. REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascenlria Community Services Inc.

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Total Budget
Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 4200013 $  97,500

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 4200013 $  130.000

2023 102/500731. Contracts for Program Services 4200013 $  32,500

Sub Total $  260,000

Building Community in New Hampshire

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Revised

Modified Budget

2021 102/500731

Contracts for Program Services

4200013 $  48.750

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 4200013 $  65,000

2023 102/500731
Contracts for Program Senrices

4200013 $  16,250

Sub Total S  130.000

I  OveraMTotall $ 390.0001
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FORM NUMBER P-37(version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Refugee Social Services (RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02)

Noiice: This agreemcnr and all of iis aitachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly Identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Building Community in New Hampshire

I

1.4 Contractor Address

540 Chestnui Si, Suite 104
Manchester, NH, 03101 - 1431

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)935-9620

1.6 Account Number

05-095-042-792200000

1.7 Completion Date

September 30. 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$130,000

1

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

l.lO Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

l.l l Contractor Signature
OocuM«n«dby;

n  -^3 '^^*^■11/10/2020
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Richard a. Minard. 3r.

Executive Director

1.13 Stale'Agcn^'fffgnature
DeevSlgfwd by:

I Ann H. N. Landry Date: 11/17/2020
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Ann H. N. Landry

Associate Commissioner

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (ifapplicoble)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Sub.stancc and Execution) (ifapplicable)
y  OecuSImM by:

By 0"4i/2 5/2020
V  C>iCA9»?F3?C4A6

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C item number: C&C Meeting Date;

Page 1 of4
Coniracior initials

Date 11/10/2020
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(•'Contractor') to pcrfomi, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Scr\'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become eneciivc on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unles.s no such appro\'8l is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EITcctivc Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs hot become
cfTective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder In excess of such available appropriated fund.s. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and .shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in (he

event funds in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the ScI^'ic€S. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreemeni those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. c.xcecd the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable simuies. laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
fiindcd in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable Intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, term.s and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
nccc.ssary to perform the Sen-ices. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event ofany
dispute conccming the Interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

/.-~~0ecwSign*4 br;
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEOIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr ("Event
ofDcfault"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 ̂ ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the noiicc; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, elTcctivc two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period ft'om the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Slate may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice .specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard -to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. Noe.xpress failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof, upon .any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 NoiNvithstanding paragraph S, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by Ihiny (30) days written notice to the Coniractor that
the State is e.tercising Its option to terminate (he Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a_ report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and num^r of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/C0NFIDENTIAL1TV/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, alt whether
fini.shed or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
ihc Scale or purchased with funds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other e.xisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to it.s employees.

12. ASS1CNMENT/DELECATI0N/SUBC0NTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or oiher\vise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Slate at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
a."isignmcnl. "Change of Control"' means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its anilialcs. becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or .similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Ser\'ices shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wTitten notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreement.^ and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
parly.

13. INDEMNIKICATION. Unleits otherwise c.xemptcd by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmle.ss the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or

Page 3 of4
Oontrsclor I nitiQlA—

Dale



DocuSign Envelope 10: E9FFD8a4-0D2A-4lFS4254.E4639274BF96

Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amouni.s of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess: and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replaceittent value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described insubpara^ph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hamp.shire by the N.H. Depanmeni of insurance, and
is.sued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certificaie(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtincatc(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.'

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ccrtifie.s
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requiremeiits of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A ("U^orkers'
Comi>ensaiion
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA.chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection .with

activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
idcnii ficd in block I .'9, or his or her succc-ssor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation prcmiunts or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other parly
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mall, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument In writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or di.scharge by the Coyemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State taw. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brou^i and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT

A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthcprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
under.standing between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee Sociai Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall become effective on
October 1. 2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of.
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follovi/s:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and hovy corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

/"^DS

RFP-202l-OH£^l^eFUG-02 Exhibit A • Revisions to Standard Contract ProN^stons Contractor Inliials
11/lO/iOZO

Building Community In New Hampshire Page 1 of 1 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee Social Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services In this agreement to refugees, with a
focus on recent arrivals and limited to those that have been in the country five
(5) years or less. Refugees in the following categories will receive service
priority:

1. New arrivals in their first year in the U.S.;

2. Refugee Cash and TANF recipients;

3. Unemployed refugees; and

4. Employed refugees in need of job retention services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in the Cities of Concord,
fvianchester and Nashua.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean calendar
'  . days.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., excluding state and
federal holidays.

1.5. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with key stakeholders and community
partners throughout the project period to assist refugees with achieving self-
sufficiency at the earliest possible date after arrival to the United Stales.

1.6. • Employment Services

1.6.1. The Contractor shall provide employment services that facilitate job
development, placement, retention and re-employment of targeted
refugees. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, including but
are not limited to:

1.6.1.1. Developing and maintaining relationships with employers,
which includes but not limited to:

1.6.1.1.1. Conducting orientations for new employers each
contract year; and

1.6.1.1.2. Identifying opportunities to develop on-site
internships and employer-based training, as
appropriate.

1.6.1.2. Conducting American workplace orientations for participating
refugees, which includes conducting employment
assessments for each employable member of refugee
households through vendor-developed assessment tools and
developing employability plans based on assessment /A

RFP.2021-OHE-01-REFUG- 1 ( n ( \
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1.6.1.3. Assisting refugees with creating and completing resumes.

1.6.1.4. Scheduling and arranging job interviews for all employable,
newly arrived refugees.

1.6.1.5. Providing employment support.

1.6.1.6. Assisting refugees with job maintenance.

1.6.1.7. Maintaining seif-sufficiency plans, case notes, and progress
reports in client files that can be referenced for semi«annual
reporting to the Office of Health Equity and for review by the
State Refugee Coordinator during annual monitoring and
other unscheduled times.

1.6.1.8. Providing referrals to support services.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with existing governmental and private
job development agencies.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall provide transportation training to increase
employability.

1.6.4. The Contractor shall provide interpreter services to new arrivals, as
needed.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall attend monthly meetings of Employment Team
meetings facilitated by the State Refugee Coordinator's Office.

1.7. Case Management

1.7.1. The Contractor shall provide case management services that assist
refugees to succeed in their new communities. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1.1. Advocate on behalf of refugees to protect civil rights and
ensure access to services.

1.7.1.2. Provide assistance with resolving housing-related issues.

1.7.1.3. Provide referrals to health care and mental health services as
well as other community service agencies.

1.7.1.4. Refer clients to appropriate ESOL or vocational ESOL
programs.

1.7.1.5. Assist newly arriving refugees with accessing and enrolling in
mainstream public programs.

1.7.1.6. Identify subsidized day care providers that are conveniently
located.

1.7.1.7. Assist newly arriving refugees with meeting transportation
needs.

rmr\RFP.2021-OHE-O1-REFUG-
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1.7.2. The Conlractor shall Provide collateral, cultural education to employers,
social service providers, health care providers, educators and others
interfacing with refugees.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164} under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall cornply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1.The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports (See Appendix F. Schedule A,
Program Narrative) as required by the Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) as
well as participate in in-person reporting, as required by the Department.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide regular updates and report on their progress towards
meeting performance measures, and overall program goals and objectives to
demonstrate they have met the minimum required services for the proposal at
regular, in-person meetings with CHE.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure progress reports align with reporting periods outlined
by ORR. Narrative reports with a summary of project outcomes shall be submitted
to CHE no later than fifteen (15) days after the completion of a project period.
Contractor shall draw attention to any changes in previously approved work plans
or timelines.

RFP-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-
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Reoortina Period Semi-Annual Reoort Due Date

09/30/2020 - 03/31/2021 04/15/2021

04/01/2021 - 09/29/2021 10/15/2021

09/30/2021 -03/31/2022 04/15/2022

04/01/2022-09/29/2021 10/15/2022

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, Improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.3. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Courl Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Sen/ice priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of tfie communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed ̂ e^r a

Coniracior .Initials ^
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Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.'

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records shall be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of jn-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of^ the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon pai|n^t ofiA
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the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the ternris of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

fRAA
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.100%, Refugee Support Services Program, as awarded on February 6,
2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Admin. For
Families and Children, CFDA 93.566, FAIN 2001NHRSCO.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis indirect Cost Rate of 21.80% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
3. Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

•. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5.' In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSContractBi!ling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial f\^anager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The. final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty.(40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

f  09

fh.
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9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.-

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3: If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual

fmr\
Building Communily In New Hampshire
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financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Departmeht's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

12.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

'  disallowed because of such an exception.

Building Community in Nev^ Hampshlfo
[mr\
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Onjg-Free Workplace Acl of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it svill or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
-1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inforrii employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free >vorkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

RAr\
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number($) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check D If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

^•■^OecuSlonad by:

11/10/2020 ^ \v\^ J JJ
Date a. Minard. Jr.

Title. Executive Director

Exhibit D - Certlficallon regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
WofXplace Requirements 11/10/2020
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ■ CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned cer{iries. to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or virill be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants;
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

-teeuSlgn«d bjRbf.

11/10/2020

Date

Ti«e:

\af\n Ij ,
A. Minard, 3r,

Executive Director

Exhibit E - Ceriiricstion Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DE8ARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oet)arment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary -
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant,' "person.' "primary covered transaction." 'principal.' "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certifcation of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of rej:ords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andi

ExhlWi F - Certificallon Ragarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initiab
And Other Responsibility Matters 11/10/2020
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cau^ or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are hot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for det>arment, declared ineligible, or

•voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not yrithin a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

OmuSIom^ W:

Ij11/10/2020

Difi A. Minard, 3r,
Title:

Executive Director

ExhiUt F - CenKication Regarding Debarmerti. Suspension Contractor Initials
RAr\
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certincation;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscn'mination requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under d^is
statute are prohibited from discriminating, eithier in employment practices or in the delivery of sen/ices or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrirhination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1883, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the^ge Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the lawrs for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards (he grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

rmi\Exhibit G

Contractor Initials
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

D*cuSl9n«« by:

11/10/2020 /Z n Ij
Date Namer''fnc)ia?d a. Minard, lr.

Executive Director

TraaExhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's sen/ices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpailent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 .of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

DocwSlgnM bjr:

11/10/2020 n l\n Ij
Date Name:"^frVStia^d a. Minard, Jr,

Title-
Executive Director

/—OS

fRArv
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AcQreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ^

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term *individuar.in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv

mArBusiness Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. \
3/2014 Exhibit I Contfactoc Initials'^- —

Health Insurance Portability Act
Busirtess Associate Agreement 11/10/2020
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meanmg as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH . .

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disciose any PHi in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the BustfiM* i ̂

3/2014 ExhiWN Cont/actor Initials^
Heatih Insurance Portability Act
Busirteas Associate Agreement 11/10/2020
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObliQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the

. protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
. disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the .risk to the protected health information has been

rnitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and.
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgplate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi/S^U

3/2014 Exhiblll Contractof Inillals^ ——
Health Insurance Portability Act
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an ,
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

]. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the •
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as BusinessVAr\

3/2014 ExNbill Contractor Inilials^ —
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitalion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
Of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r^sofved

RArto permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. \
3/2014 Exhlbil I Contfadof ' , —, —
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Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not'affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

1

Sun/ivai. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Building Community in New Hampshire

Ann H. N. Landry

^6QSs9Ub^ Contractor

n hn Ij
Signature 6'f Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Ann H. N. Landry Richard A. Minard, Ir.

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Associate commissioner Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

11/17/2020 11/10/2020

Dale Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccountabHily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to-or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sul^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFfR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier.of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

■D«eu9lgn«d by:

il/10/2020 I ^ [V\;' /
Date Name;'^^'^'A- MlhSr'fi. Jr*.

Title. Executive Director

Exhibit J - Certification Reflardlnj the Fedora! Funding Contractor Inltlah
Accountability And Tranjparoncy Act (FFATA) Compliance 11/10/2020
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.030630691
1. The DUNS number for vour entity is:

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

if the answer to tt2 above is NO, stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or-organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUDHHSni07t3
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means "the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personalty identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Cohfidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hurnan Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knov/ledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Slate of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt>er, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts'160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals .and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

I. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data tietween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
-  or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless nelworlc. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hbur auto-delellon cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data rriust be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to. destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware, and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department.of Commerce, The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and v/ill provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, w/here applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Conlraclor will maintain'appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor vrill execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will svork v/ith the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Conlraclor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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•  the breach, Including but not limited,to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State Ibw.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical' safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wWw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards.' and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connectionwith purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must riot t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserve's the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. •

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.'nh.gov
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